91031-6

No. 44714-2-II

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

Received
Washington State Supreme Court

JONATHAN C. JAMES,

Petitioner,

NOV 2 4 2014

Ronald R. Carpenter

٧.

WASHINGTON STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

Respondent,

PETITION FOR REVIEW BY
THE WASHINGTON STATE SUPREME COURT

Presented by:

Jonathan C. James PO BOX 13261 Spokane Valley, WA 99213 (509) 342-8703 jon_opportunity@hotmail.com

I. Identity of Petitioner

Petitioner Jonathan C. James, respectfully requests this Court to review the Court of Appeals' decision referred to in section II.

II. Citation to the Court of Appeals Decision

Mr. James seeks review of the Court of Appeals' unpublished decision James v. State of Washington Employment Security No. 44276-II (September 23, 2014) (Appendix (App.) A) and Refusal to Reconsider (October 29, 2014) (App. B) which affirmed the lower courts decisions that he as well as all other Washingtonians must break the law and/or sacrifice Employment Standards Rights before terminating employee/employer relationships for unemployment compensation purposes.

III. Issues Presented for Review

The Washington State Employment Security Department (Respondents) first refused to provide aid to Mr. James conditionally as required by law and/or rule without cause. Then the Respondents refused to provide Mr. James with all of the evidence provided by his employer as required by law and/or rule without cause. Mr. James investigated and appealed the conspiratory acts under Ch. 50.20 RCW which provided exploited limited review of the Respondents interpretation and administration of job search monetary aid while suppressing the employers' falsified statements.

The issues presented for review are:

- (1) Is a citizen NOT entitled to conditional benefits because of the job separation issues and personal efficacy of the Respondents interpreting and administering Ch. 50.20 RCW; 192-120-050 WAC?
- (2) Is a citizen NOT entitled to all evidence used and/or considered against her/him because of the job separation issues and personal efficacy of Respondents until Superior Court proceeding are filed Ch. 50.20 RCW; 192-120-040 WAC?

(3) Should any citizen required to break the law and/or sacrifice Employment Standards Rights before terminating a employee-employer relationship Ch. 50.20 RCW; 192-150-130(2), - 135(2) WAC?

IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A. Mr. James Seeks Conditional Benefits

Mr. James had received unemployment benefits within 4-weeks of his job separation at issue and the Respondents advised him they must pay him conditionally until a decision was made. Arbitrarily, the Respondents refused citing the issues he raised barred him from conditional benefits.

B. Mr. James Seeks Employer Evidence

Mr. James requested all employers statements, documents and evidence gathered and used before a decision was made while, he was supposed to be receiving conditional benefits. Arbitrarily, the Respondents refused intentionally, suppressing a document entitled Employment Security Department Telephonic Fact-Finding Fact Finding Report that contained the employer alleging employees were entitled to take statutory required rest periods at their own discretion.

The Respondents did disclose/suppressed the document until both the Administrative Law Judge (ALI) and Commissioners Review Judge (CRJ) held credibility administrative fact finding hearings.

C. The Court of Appeals Affirms Decisions Below

The Court of Appeals construed Mr. James complaint as setting out four separate claims—first, that the Respondents failed to pay him conditionally as required by law, second that they failed to provide him evidence as required by law, third the Superior Court Agency Record does not support the finding of facts and conclusions of law, and finally, the requirement that a citizen must first knowingly break the law and/or sacrifice Employment Standards Rights as a condition of employment is inconsistent with 14th Amendment protections. Mr. James now Petitions this Court to review the Court of Appeals' Opinion.

ARGUMENT

ı

ALLOWING THE RESPONDENTS TO WITHHOLD CONDITIONAL MONETARY JOB SEARCH BENEFITS REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY PRESCRIBED PROCEDURE/LAW IS A MATTER OF GREAT PUBLIC CONCERN

This petition raises important questions of law and policy regarding the administration and interpretation of responsibilities bestowed upon the Respondents under 192-120-050 WAC.

Normally, when a citizen has received job search assistance within the previous 4-weeks and separates from any employment circumstance she/he is entitled to conditional benefits regardless of the new issues except Mr. James.

This law/rule levels the playing field between employee and employer somewhat staying consistent with 14th Amendment protections as it allows a employee to freely investigate a prospective employer to determine if the conditions of employment are legal and/or safe. Alternatively, employers are typically, granted 90-days to vet prospective employees to determine if they are legal and/or safe.

Hereunder, Mr. James had no monetary resources to first search for optional employment as 192-120-050 WAC guarantees him moreover, fairly challenge the Respondents as they held his job search aid hostage without cause setting the stage for the evidentiary negligence that follows.

There was and still is no excuse why the Respondents have withheld Mr. James conditional benefits, benefits he would still have rights to until all judicial proceedings expire including but, not limited to this petition of the Court. Ultimately, an Injunctive Order/Stay is respectively requested to be issued by this Court summarily to compensate Mr. James for what he is and was entitled to aid his lop sided legal challenges and job search efforts still ongoing.

ALLOWING THE RESPONDENTS TO WITHHOLD/SUPRESS EMPLOYER EVIDENCE REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED BY LAW/PROCEDURE IS A MATTER OF GREAT PUBLIC CONCERN

Next, after crippling Mr. James monetarily without cause the Respondents withhold/suppress the employers ONLY fact finding statements after disclosing all of Mr. James' fact finding statements to the employer contrary to 192-120-040 WAC.

Mr. James had no idea what the Respondents are relying on at this stage of the administrative process.

Because, Mr. James and the ALJ did not have the original employers evidence they both could not gauge credibility and challenge the facts the Respondents initially relied upon and later mutate. This court is respectfully requested to Order a Remand of the case directing a new fact finding hearing directing the withheld/suppressed employer facts be admitted and considered for credibility purposes as a matter of pure/proper due process.

111

REQUIRING CITIZENS TO NOTIFY AND ALLOW TIME TO CORRECT ILLEGAL/UNSAFE REQUIRED CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT IS A MATTER OF GREAT PUBLIC CONCERN

In 2004 the Washington State Employment Security Department (Respondents) began to administer and enforce Washington State Administrative Code (WAC) 192-150-130(2); - 135(2) that requires all Washington State workers to commit various crimes and sacrifice employment standards rights before they can separate from employers with good cause. At bottom the aforementioned WAC's unfairly require Washington State workers to first notify their individual employer of the employers' known required illegal and/or unsafe acts then continue the acts while, the worker knows firsthand they won't stop.

Mr. James' employer testified Mr. James was disciplined for "disappearing" from work for short periods of time when actually Mr. James was taking and/or notifying the employer of his rest periods rights consistent with what the Respondents intentionally suppressed.

The employer testified fact displays Mr. James first, notifying his employer he is entitled to some form of rest periods by breaking employer policy and second, that NO rest periods were allowed glean to disciplinary acts of the employers foreman that support the policy of no rest periods.

Putting the Respondents intentional suppression of conditional benefits and evidence aside this Court is left with 192-150-130(2); -135(2) new requirements that in short require employee NOT employers to bend over backwards to preserve employment regardless of law and rights.

192-150-130(2); - 135(2) WAC do not explain how a employee must first notify a employer he/she is requiring illegal activities and/or a sacrifice to Employment Standard Rights to safety just that it must occur creating a playground of vagueness for employers and the Respondents alike, certainly exploited hereunder.

In this case it appears the Respondents and employer assume Mr. James is required to notify his employer of the actual Employment Standards found within 296-126-092(4)(5) WAC and ES.C.6.

This is a fallacy as found within Empl. Sec. Comm'r Dec.2d 958 (WA), 2010 WL 6795724 where a claimant quit with good cause because he was not receiving pay rights pursuant to 296-126-023(4). Thereunder, the claimant did not advise his employer it was his right to have regular pay periods as 296-126-023(4) requires, he just asked for his pay and did not get it timely, tantamount to what Mr. James did by breaking his employers policy that no rest periods are allowed, period yet he took some anyway fed up with his knowledge he could prove he actually was not allowed rest periods any other way than by getting disciplined.

Much like the claimant in Empl. Sec. Comm'r Dec.2d 958 (WA), 2010 WL 6795724, Mr. James kept his mouth shut, worked without any rest periods and quit after seeing if the employer would allow them.

Mr. James upset both the employer and the Respondents as he set the employer up as 192-150-135(2) requires of him much like a employee who is required to falsify client billing or trade certificates at the requirement of the employer.

Mr. James nor any other Washington employee should be forced to defraud a employers client, falsify trade certificates, sacrifice a safe work place under a employers condition of employment, then notify, and allow time to correct it's ludicrous yet, Mr. James did just that as did the claimant found within Empl. Sec. Comm'r Dec.2d 958 (WA), 2010 WL 6795724 grossly overlooked by the absence of the employer initial suppressed evidence.

This Court is respectfully requested to strike down the requirement, a employee must notify a employer who requires breaking the law and/or requiring a sacrifice of Employment Standard Rights as it is contrary to 14th Amendment protections and common sense. While at the same time recognizing why? the Respondents intentionally provided aid to the employer hereunder, as they knew Mr. James established a form of notification as he did try to take a rest period consistent to what his employer first stated giving rise to all the cover up that followed that mutated into some non-sense his employer did provide rest periods to the tune of 1.5 hrs a day when only required by law to provide 20 minutes.

CONCLUSION

Much like Mr. James as well as all other Washingtonians both are now required to first break the law and/or sacrifice the Employment Standard Rights to a safe work place pursuant to 192-150-130(2); - 135(2) the Respondents are also required to pay conditional benefits pursuant to 192-120-050 WAC and during that time provide a fair "Opportunity to be heard" that requires all the employer evidence 192-150-040 to which the Respondents intentionally failed to do all in the name of hiding the fact Mr. James did in fact notify his employer of rest period rights by simply taking them only to be punished as he assumed he would be, nevertheless he did "notify" his employer and his employer failed to correct.

Most if not all Washington citizens know that they will be punished when and while the "notify" there employers' of illegal activities and/or unsafe working conditions the employer requires, as is the case hereunder.

We the citizen workforce of Washington can't stand by and watch employers say and/or do anything while government agencies such as the Respondents aid employers illegal activities and/or unsafe workplaces, it's just not right and a matter of grave concern too Mr. James and should be a matter of grave concern to this Court who has previously shown concern with 192-150-130(2); - 135(2) (2004).