I. INTRODUCTION 

An individual who leaves work voluntarily without good cause is 

disqualified from unemployment benefits. The Commissioner of the 

Employment Security Department correctly applied the plain language of 

the applicable statute and determined Jon James did not have good cause 

to quit. Although James alleged that he quit due to deteriorated safety of, 

and illegal activities in his worksite, he quit without reporting these 

alleged conditions to his employer or allowing a reasonable amount of 

time for his employer to address the conditions. 

The Court of Appeals correctly affirmed the Commissioner's 

decision and rejected James's additional arguments on appeal. James 

could not raise the issue of "conditional benefits" on appeal because he did 

not raise it below. And, contrary to James's arguments, the Department 

did not improperly include certain documents in the administrative record. 

Review by this Court is not warranted under any of the reasons in 

RAP 13.4(b). James appears to argue that review is warranted because his 

petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that this Court 

should determine. RAP 13.4(b)(4). It does not. The Commissioner 

properly applied the plain language of RCW 50.20.050, the voluntary quit 

statute, to the specific and straightforward facts of James's case. The 

Department respectfully asks the Court to deny review. 



II. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE ISSUES 

The issues raised in James's Petition for Review are not 

appropriate for review by this Court under RAP 13.4(b)(4). If the Court 

accepts review, however, the issues will be: 

1. Did the Commissioner properly conclude that James did not 
establish good cause to quit under RCW 50.20.050(2)(b)(viii) 
or (ix) because he quit without reporting any alleged safety 
hazards or illegal activities to his employer or allowing a 
reasonable amount of time for his employer to end the 
activities? 

2. Did the Court of Appeals appropriately decline to address 
James's argument that the Department improperly denied .him 
"conditional benefits" because he did not raise the issue before 
the agency? 

3. Did the Department correctly include a document titled "Expert 
Fact Finding" in the agency record where the AP A requires the 
record to include all evidence received and the document's 
inclusion did not otherwise prejudice James? 

III. COUNTERSTATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Jon James quit his job as a general laborer for Ace Landscaping 

after working for three weeks. Commissioner's Record (CR) at 38-39, 

135; Finding of Fact (FF) 6. He quit because he believed that his 

employer had violated the law by not allowing him scheduled rest periods. 

CR at 43, 47-48, 73, 135; FF 7. James's job duties did not require him to 

engage in continuous labor; his work involved frequent changing of tasks 
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and tools. CR at 51-52, 62-63, 148. In a 10-hour workday, he had five 

10- to 15-minute periods of downtime. !d. 

Before he quit, James did not notify his supervisor or employer of 

his concern over the employer's allegedly illegal practice of not providing 

scheduled breaks. CR at 43-44, 52, 55, 63-64, 66-67, 135, 150; FF 8. He 

told some of his coworkers that he was quitting because he "wasn't going 

to take anymore," but said nothing to his supervisor or employer and made 

no effort to fmd an alternative to quitting. !d. 

James also claims that he quit because of certain safety issues on 

the worksite. CR at 41-42, 45-48, 73, 135; FF 7. Specifically, sometime 

prior to the day James quit, two of his coworkers rode in the bucket of a 

front loader on the worksite, and the crew installed an incorrect valve in an 

irrigation system. CR at 45-46, 56-57, 135; FF 7. The job superintendent 

reprimanded the employees who rode in the front loader, and the employer 

installed the correct valve when it learned of its error upon inspection. CR 

at 56-57, 84, 135, 148; FF 9. James never reported these issues to his 

employer before he quit; the employer had already resolved them. !d. 

James filed a claim for unemployment benefits, which the 

Employment Security Department denied on the grounds that he quit 

without good cause. CR at 116-19. James appealed, and, after a hearing 

in the Office of Administrative Hearings, an administrative law judge 
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issued an initial order affirming the Department's decision. CR at 134-38. 

James then filed a petition for review with the Department's 

Commissioner, who issued a decision adopting and augmenting the 

administrative law judge's findings of fact and conclusions oflaw. 

The administrative law judge and the Commissioner made express 

fmdings that the employer's testimony was more credible than that of 

James and resolved conflicting testimony in the employer's favor. CR at 

135, 149; FF 5. The Commissioner concluded that James did not have 

good cause to quit his job because he failed to notify his employer of 

alleged illegal activity before he quit, failed to provide his employer a 

reasonable period of time to address the activity before he quit, and failed 

to prove that illegal activities in fact took place. CR at 150. The 

Commissioner also determined that James did not notify his employer of 

any unsafe working conditions and that the conditions cited by James were 

remedied before he quit. !d. 

James appealed to Thurston County Superior Court, which 

affirmed the Commissioner's decision. James then appealed to the Court 

of Appeals. In an unpublished decision made without oral argument, the 

Court upheld the Commissioner's findings as being supported by 

substantial evidence and affirmed the Commissioner's determination that 

James was disqualified from benefits because he did not report worksite 
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hazards or illegal activities to his employer before he quit. James v. Emp 't 

Sec. Dep 't, No. 44714-2-II, slip op. at 5 (Wash. Ct. App. Sept. 23, 2014). 

The Court also declined to consider James's argument concerning 

conditional benefits because he had not raised it before the agency. Id. at 

3. Finally, the Court rejected James's argument that the "Expert Fact 

Finding" documents were not disclosed to the administrative law judge or 

Commissioner because, in fact, the documents were included in the 

administra~ive record. Id. at 4. James now petitions this Court for review. 

IV. REASONS WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE DENIED 

Although James does not address RAP 13.4 in his petition, he 

appears to argue that the Court should accept review under RAP 

13.4(b)(4). The Court will accept review under this provision only "(i]f 

the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be 

determined by the Supreme Court." James presents no such issue in his 

petition. 

As the Department will show, the Commissioner correctly applied 

the plain language of the voluntary quit statute, RCW 50.20.050(2)(b), to 

determine that James did not establish good cause for quitting work and 

was therefore disqualified from receiving unemployment benefits. 

James's only argument appears to be, essentially, that the statute's 

requirement that an individual report any illegal activity or safety hazards 
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before quitting is unfair. It is for the legislature to address James's 

concern, not the Court. The Court should deny review because the 

Commissioner's proper application of the plain language of the voluntary 

quit statute raises no issue of substantial public concern. 

The Court should likewise deny review of the other issues James 

puts forward. James did not raise the issue of conditional benefits before 

the agency below and cannot raise it on appeal. Although James argues 

that it is of public concern that the Department allegedly withheld certain 

"fact finding statements" from him, he has shown no legal error and had 

ample opportunity to cross-examine his former employer's evidence in the 

administrative hearing. None of these issues is one of substantial public 

importance that should be determined by this Court. The Court should . 

deny review. 

A. The Commissioner Correctly Determined that James .Did Not 
Have Good Cause Under the "Worksite Safety" or "Illegal 
Activities" Provisions Because He Did Not Report Any 
Problematic Conditions to His Employer Before He Quit 

The legislature enacted the Employment Security Act to provide 

compensation to individuals who are involuntarily unemployed "through 

no fault of their own." RCW 50.01.010; Courtney v. Emp't Sec. Dep't, 

171 Wn. App. 655, 660, 287 P.3d 596 (2012). As such, a person is 

ineligible to receive unemployment benefits if he "left work voluntarily 
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without good cause." RCW 50.20.050(2)(a); Anderson v. Emp 't Sec. 

Dep 't, 135 Wn. App. 887, 893, 146 P.3d 475 (2006). A claimant can 

establish good cause only if he quit for one of the 11 reasons enumerated 

in RCW 50.20.050(2)(b). Campbell v. Emp't Sec. Dep't, 180 Wn.2d 566, 

572, 326 P.3d 713 (2014). 

James argued below that he had good cause to quit his job under 

the "worksite safety" and "illegal activities" provisions of the voluntary 

quit statute. See RCW 50.20.050(2)(b)(viii) & (ix). The "worksite safety" 

provision directs that an individual has good cause to quit his job if his 

"worksite safety deteriorated, the individual reported such safety 

deterioration to the employer, and the employer failed to correct the 

hazards within a reasonable period of time." RCW 50.20.050(2)(b)(viii); 

WAC 192-150-130(2). The "illegal activities" provision similarly gives 

an individual good cause to quit if he "left work because of illegal 

activities in the individual's worksite, the individual reported such 

activities to the employer, and the employer failed to end such activities 

within a reasonable period of time." RCW 50.20.050(2)(b )(ix); WAC 192-

150-135(2). 

Common to both provisions is the requirement that, before he 

quits, an individual must first report the alleged safety hazards or illegal 

activities to his employer and allow a reasonable amount of time for the 
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employer to correct the conditions at issue. The Commissioner correctly 

found, based on the unequivocal and consistent testimony of the employer 

and James's supervisor, that James did not report any safety issues or 

illegal activities to them before he quit. CR at 52, 55, 63-64, 66-67, 135, 

150; Finding of Fact (FF) 8. The Court of Appeals properly affirmed that 

substantial evidence in the record supports the Commissioner's factual 

finding. James, No. 44714-2-II, slip op. at 4-5. To the extent that James 

challenges this fmding, the Commissioner made an express finding that 

the testimony of the employer's witnesses was more credible than James's 

testimony. CR at 135, 149; FF 5. Under the Administrative Procedure 

Act, chapter 34.05 RCW (AP A), a reviewing court "will not substitute 

[its] judgment for that of the agency regarding witness credibility." Smith 

v. Emp't Sec. Dep't, 155 Wn. App. 24, 35, 226 P.3d 263 (2010) (internal 

citations omitted). 

Substantial evidence supports the Commissioner's finding that 

James did not report to his employer any alleged safety hazards or illegal 

activities. Accordingly, by the plain language of RCW 

50.20.050(2)(b)(viii) & (ix), James did not have good cause to quit and is 

disqualified from benefits. 

In his petition, James's principle argument is that the pre-quit 

reporting requirement in the worksite safety and illegal activities 
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provisions is unfair because it requires a worker to suffer from or even 

themselves commit safety violations and illegal activities before they quit. 

That is not the case. First, the Department has provided by rule that the 

reasonable period of time an individual must provide his employer to 

correct illegality or safety hazards is the amount of time a reasonably 

prudent person would continue to work under the conditions. WAC 192-

150-130(2)(b); -135(4). Accordingly, if exceptionally egregious 

conditions exist on the worksite, an individual would have good cause to 

quit promptly after notifying his employer. 

The Department has also clarified by rule that, "[t]or health or 

safety issues that present imminent danger of serious bodily injury or 

death to any person, [an individual's] employer must take immediate steps 

to correct the situation." WAC 192-150-130(2)(b )(i). "Serious bodily 

injury" means "bodily injury which creates a probability of death, or 

which causes serious permanent disfigurement, or which causes a 

significant loss or impairment of the function of any bodily part or organ 

whether permanent or temporary." WAC 192-150-130(2)( c). James 

provided no evidence of any such serious danger. 

And an individual need not report illegality before quitting if his 

"employer is conducting the illegal activity and notifying [his] employer 

could jeopardize [his] safety or is contrary to other federal and state laws 
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(for example, whistleblower protection laws)." WAC 192-150-135(2). 

James has put forth no evidence or argument showing that notifying his 

employer of its alleged failure to provide scheduled rest periods 

jeopardized his safety or was contrary to the law. He makes only a 

passing argument that the reporting requirement violates the 14th 

Amendment without any further analysis. Courts do not consider issues 

presented with only "[p ]assing treatment . . . or lack of reasoned 

argument." Holland v. City of Tacoma, 90 Wn. App. 533, 538, 954 P.2d 

290 (1998), as amended (May 22, 1998) (internal citation omitted). 

In sum, this case involves a straightforward application of 

unambiguous statutory language to straightforward facts. It does not 

involve an issue of substantial public importance justifying further review 

by this Court. 

B. The Court of Appeals Properly Declined to Consider James's 
Argument Concerning Conditional Benefits Because He Did 
Not Raise the Issue Before the Agency 

Review of James's argument concerning conditional benefits is 

unwarranted. James raised this issue for the first time when he appealed to 

the Court of Appeals, arguing that the Department should have paid him 

conditional benefits under WAC 192-120-050. James, No. 44714-2-II, 

slip op. at 3. The Court of Appeals correctly declined to address his 

argument because he did not raise the issue during administrative 
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proceedings below. I d. This Court should likewise decline review of this 

issue because it is not one of the few kinds of issues that may be raised for 

the first time on appeal under the APA. See RCW 34.05.554.1 

C. The Department Included the Document Titled "Expert Fact 
Finding" in the Agency Record in Accordance with the AP A 
and Without Prejudice to James 

Finally, the Court should decline review of James's arguments 

related to evidence he describes as "fact finding statements" from the 

employer. Although the nature of James's challenge is somewhat unclear, 

he appears to allege that the Department withheld certain evidence from 

him before his administrative hearing. 

Before the superior court, James raised an issue with respect to a 

document in the "Miscellaneous" section of the agency record titled, 

1 RCW 34.05.554 provides: 
( 1) Issues not raised before the agency may not be raised on appeal, 
except to the extent that: 

(a) The person did not know and was under no duty to 
discover or could not have reasonably discovered facts giving rise to 
the issue; 

(b) The agency action subject to judicial review is a rule and 
the person has not been a party in adjudicative proceedings that 
provided an adequate opportunity to raise the issue; 

(c) The agency action subject to judicial review is an order and 
the person was not notified of the adjudicative proceeding in substantial 
compliance with this chapter; or 

(d) The interests of justice would be served by resolution of an 
issue arising from: 

(i) A change in controlling law occurring after the agency 
action; or 

(ii) Agency action occurring after the person exhausted the 
last feasible opportunity for seeking relief from the agency. 
(2) The court shall remand to the agency for determination any issue 
that is properly raised pursuant to subsection (1) of this section. 
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"Expert Fact Finding," which included notes regarding a Department staff 

member's telephone interview with James's former employer. CR at 169-

71; Clerk's Papers at 38-58. Ultimately, James has shown no error with 

respect to the "Expert Fact Finding" document because, by statute, it was 

appropriately included in the agency record and the employer testified at 

the hearing to everything contained therein. See RCW 34.05.476(2)(d) 

("[t]he agency record shall include: . . . evidence received or 

considered,"); CR at 51-52, 54-55, 62, 63, 65, 68, 169-71 (employer's 

testimony). James had an opportunity to cross-examine the employer's 

testimony and has put forth no argument establishing that including these 

pages in the record violated the AP A or otherwise prejudiced him. This is 

not an issue of substantial public importance, and the Court should decline 

to review it. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

12 



V. CONCLUSION 

James's petition does not involve any issue of substantial public 

interest. The Department respectfully asks the Court to deny review.